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Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority
Consolida

ed and separate financial statements

For the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017

Directors' report

1 Financial statements

The directors of the Authority present their quarter one report on the affairs of Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority (‘the
Authority’ or ‘NSIA"), together with the financial statements of the Authority and the subsidiaries (known as "the Group™) and
independent auditor's report for the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017.

2 Principal activities
The Authority was established by the Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority (Establishment ete.) Act, 2011 to manage excess
funds from the country's sale of crude oil. This is performed through three (3) funds; Stabilisation Fund (SF), Nigeria
Infrastructure Fund (NTF) and the Future Generation Fund (FGF). The Authority commenced operations in October 2012.

3 Operating results
The following is a summary of the Authority's operating results for the period:

Group Authority
31 March 31 March
2017 2017
N'ooo N'ooo
Investment and interest income 3,600,046 3,266,464
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets (699,077) (699,077)
Net foreign exchange gains (357.840) (357,840)
Profit after tax 1,797,018 1,332,347
Total comprehensive income for the period 4,834,270 4,198,597

4 Objective
NSIA is an autonomous entity established under the laws of the Federal Republic of Nigeria with broad mandates to:

a) enhance the development of Nigerian infrastructure
b) provide stabilisation support in times of economic stress, and
¢) carry out such other activities as may be related to the above objects.

5 Governance and management
The Act establishes a Governing Couneil (the Council) for the Authority. The Council comprises the following:

a) The President of Nigeria (who may be represented by the Vice-President);
b) Governors of Nigeria's 36 States; and
¢) Eighteen other appointees, including:

(i) Attorney-General of the Federation;

(ii) Minister of Finance;

(iii) Minister in charge of the National Planning Commission.

6 Employment of disabled persons
The Authority has a policy of fair consideration of job applications by disabled persons having regard to their abilities and aptitude.
The Authority’s policy prohibits discrimination of disabled persons in the recruitment, training and career development of its
employees. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the
Authority continues and that appropriate training is arranged.

7 Employee health, safety and environment
The Authority enforces strict health and safety rules and practices in the work environment, which are reviewed and tested
regularly. The Authority provides medical insurance for its employees through designated hospitals and clinics. Fire prevention
and fire-fighting equipment are installed at strategic locations within the Authority’s premises.
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Nigeria Sovereign Investinent Authority
Consolidated and separate financial statements
For the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017

Statement of directors' responsibilities
In relation to the financial statements for the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017

The Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority Act requires the preparation of quarterly reports of the financial affairs of the Authority and
Group at the end of the quarter and of its profit or loss. The responsibility include:
a. ensuring that the Authority and Group keep proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial
position of the Authority and Group and comply with the requirements of the Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority Act;
b. designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; and
¢. preparing the Authority and Group's financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates that are consistently applied.
The directors accept responsibility for the quarterly financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority Act.
The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Authority and
Group and of its profit or loss. The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of aceounting records that may be relied
upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Authority will not remain a going concern for at least twelve months
from the date of this statement.

Signed on behalf of the directors by:

B e M (s

Mr. Uche Orji Mr. Hanspeter Ackermann
Managing Director Executive Director
FRC/2014/I0DN/00000007036 FRC/2015/10DN /00000012315
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REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION TO THE
MEMBERS OF THE NIGERIA SOVEREIGN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated and separate statement of financial position of
Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority (“the Authority”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) as of 31 March 2017 and the related consolidated and separate statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the three-month period then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. Management is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this interim financial information in
accordance with the International Accounting Standard 34 “Interim financial reporting”. Our
responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim financial information based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements
2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity." A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other
review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an
audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying consolidated and separate interim financial information does not give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and the Authority as at 31 March 2017, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the three-month period then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standard 34 “Interim financial reporting”.

For: PricewaterhouseCoopers 11 August 2017
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria

Engagement Partner: Samuel Abu
FRC/2013/ICAN/ 000000001495

PricewaterhouseCoopers Chartered Accountants, Landmark Towers 5B Water Corporation Road, Vietoria Island,
Lagos, Nigeria.



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Consolidated and separate fina:

Statement of comprehensive income

For the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017

1wcial statement

Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
Notes N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'oo0 N 'oo0
Investment and interest income 9 3,600,046 1,404,165 3,266,464 1,404,165
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets i0 (699,077) 3,556,921 (699,077) 3,450,588
Net foreign exchange loss 11 (357,840) (76,662) (357,840) (76,662)
Total operating income 2,543,129 4,884,424 2,209,547 4,778,092
Investment management fees (323,266) (28,825) (283,311) (28,825)
Local custodian fees = (2,525) > (2,525)
Foreign custodian fees (21) (20,975) (21) (20,975)
Total investment management & custodian fee (323,287) (52,325) (283,332) (52,325)
Total operating profit 2,219,842 4,832,099 1,926,215 4,725,767
Other income 12 2,437,338 - 2,338 -
Operating and administrative expenses 13 (2,048,761) (423,870) (596,206) (416,418)
Share of profit of investment in associate 88,599 23,847 = =
Profit before tax 1,797,018 4,432,076 1,332,347 4,309,349
Taxation 14 o 2,511 = o
Profit after tax 1,797,018 4,434,587 1,332,347 4,309,349
Profit attributable to:
Owners of NSIA 1,796,922 4,434,670 1,332,347 4.309.349
Non-controlling interest 96 131 - =
1,797,018 4,434,801 1,332,347 4,309,349
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Movement in fair value reserves
Net change in fair value 2,704,994 592,262 2,866,250 595,009
Share of other comprehensive income of associate 245,451 7488 o -
Currency translation differences 86,806 23,861 - -
Other comprehensive income for the period 3,037,252 623,611 2,866,250 595,009
Total comprehensive income for the period 4,834,270 5,058,412 4,198,597 4,904,358
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of NSIA 4,834,207 5,057,946 4,198,597 4,904,358
Non-controlling interest 63 466 - -
4,834,270 5,058,412 4,198,597 4,904,358

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authori
Consolidated and separate financial staten

Statement of financial position

As at 31 March 2017
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
Notes N 'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15 148,832,386 148,267,906 132,566,855 141,076,852
Investment securities 16 243,338,345 249,822,688 225,057,268 234,132,773
Other assets 17 16,207,876 4,608,044 27,863,965 7,355,693
Investment in subsidiaries 18 - - 7,096,155 7,006,155
Investment in associate 19 2,291,504 1,957,853 1,600,000 1,600,000
Property and equipment 20 16,273,482 16,187,064 53,493 66,304
Intangible assets 21 483 621 483 621
Total Assets 426,944,476 420,934,176 394,238,219 §21=323§93
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 25,265,592 24,089,561 2,429,712 3,718,488
Total liabilities 25,265,592 24,089,561 2,429,712 3,718,488
Equity and reserves
Contribution by Government 23 204,375,000 204,375,000 204,375,000 204,375,000
Retained earnings 23 149,642,269 147,845,348 148,504,963 147,172,616
Fair value reserve 23 39,611,638 36,661,142 38,928,544 36,062,204
Currency translation reserve 23 8,045,290 7,958,502 = s
401,674,197 396,839,992 391,808,507 387,609,910
Total equity and amount
attributable to equity contributors
of the parent (Government)
Non-controlling interest 23 4,687 4,623 - =
Total equity 401,678,884 396,844,615 391,808,507 387,609,910
Total equity and liabilities 426,944,476 420,934,176 394,238,219 391,328,398

Signed on behalf of directors on 7 August 2017 by:

i T —

Mr. Uche Orji . Hanspeter Ackermann
Managing Director Executive Director
FRC/2014/10DN/00000007036 FRC/2015/10DN/000000012315

Additionally certified by:
L k
Mrs. Stélla Ojelwe-Onyejeli Mrs, Olubisi Makojtf
ive Director Financial Controller
FRC/2014/1CAN/00000005766 FRC/2014/ICAN/00000005765

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

| statements

Consolidated and separate financia
Statement of changes in equity
For the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017

Contribution Retained Fair value Total
by Government earnings reserve
Authority N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo N '‘ooo
Balance at 1 January 2017 204,375,000 147,172,616 36,062,294 387,609,910
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the period - 1,332,347 & 1,332.347
o 1,332,347 = 1,332,347
Other comprehensive income for the period
Net changes in fair value of financial assets (available for sale) = = 2,866,250 2,866,250
Total other comprehensive income - > 2,866,250 2,866,250
Total comprehensive income for the period * 1,332,347 2,866,250 4,198,597
Balance at 31 March 2017
Authority
Balance at 1 January 2016 155,250,000 17.738.425 23 1 6
Transaction with owners
Additional contribution received 49,125,000 = - 49,125,000
Total transaction with owners 49,125,000 = = 49,125,000
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the period 5 4:309.349 = 4.309.340
= 4.309.349 - 4:309.349
Other prek ive i for the period
Net changes in fair value of financial assets (available for sale) - - 595,009 595,009
Total other comprehensive income = = 595,009 595,009
Total comprehensive income for the period - 4,309,349 595,009 4,904,358
Balance at 31 March 2016 — 204,375,000 32,007,774 2391258 249,614,032



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Consolidated and separate financial

Statement of cash flows

For the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017

Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'oo0 N 'ooo
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 1,797,018 4,432,290 1,332,347 4,300,349
Adj tstor ile profit before tax to net
cash flow from operating activities:
Depreciation charge for the period 13,679 20,546 12,811 20,122
Amortisation of intangible assets 138 2,036 138 2,036
Tax paid - 2,511 - -
Share of profit from associate (88,599) (23,847) - -
Movements in operating assets/ liabilities:
Decrease in investment securities 6,484,343 16,447,123 9,075,505 16,870,718
Decrease in other assets (11,500,832) (2,271,629) (20,508,273) {2,311,800)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 1,176,029 (962,415) (1,288,772) (923,809)
Net cash generated/(used) in operating activities (2,127,224) 17,646,615 (11,376,245) 17,966,606
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (100,097) (13,590) = (13.590)
Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities (100,097) (13,590) (o) (13,590)
Cash flows from financing activities
Contribution by Government i 49,125,000 E 49,125,000
Net cash generated in i ing activities - 49,125,000 - 40,125,000
Net cash movement for the period (2,227,320) 66,758,025 (11,376,245) 67,078,016
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 148,267,906 37,983,532 141,076,852 32,913,468
Net exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents 2,791,800 - 2,866,248 -
Cash and cash equivalents at period end 148,832,386 104,741.=5_57_ 132£65.355 99‘._9"1-434
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash in hand 197 3 197 3
Bank balances 88,808,209 104,741,554 72,542,677 99,991,481
Placements with fi ial institutions 60,023,980 - 60,023,081 =
Total cash and cash equivalents 143,83'.:‘,_386 104,741,557 132&66,855 99&991,484

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority
Consolidated and separate financial statements

For the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the financial stalements

a1

3.2

(a)

General Information

Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority (NSIA' or ‘the Authority’) was established to receive, ge and invest the excess funds from the
country's sale of erude cil in a diversified portfolio of medium and long-term investments. The Authority was setup by the Nigeria Sovereign
Investment Authority Act, which was signed in May 2011 and was allocated an initial USD 1 billion in seed capital. The Authority commenced
operations in October 2012,

The Authority is domiciled in Nigeria and its registered office address is the Clan Place, 4th floor, Plot 1386A, Tigris Crescent, Maitama,
Abuja.

To actualise its mandate, the Authority has established three separate “ring-fenced’ funds. They include Stabilisation Fund (SF), Future
Generations Fund (FGF) and Nigeria Infrastructure Fund (NIF). The investment activities of the funds are managed as follows:

Stabilisation Fund (SF)
Nigeria Infrastucture Fund (NIF)

Future Generations Fund (FGF)

Structure and content

The financial statements comprise:

(a) A statement of financial posmom at the end of the period;

(B)A of compret i for the period;

(c) A statement of changes in equity for the period;

(d) A statement of cash flows for the period;

(e) Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consclidated and separate financial statements of Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority (NSIA) hm been wepumd in amdmoe uiﬂ:
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) on Interim finandal information (IAS 34), includi

and Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {EFEIC] pplicable to
under IFRS. Further standards may be issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and may be tuh)ea tn ﬂ:e
interpretations issued by the IFRIC.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:

* Available-for-sale fi ial assets are d at fair value
* Fair value through profit or loss financial assets are measured at fair value
* Held to maturity financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Functional and p tion currency
These fi jal are pr d in Naira. All financial information presented in Naira has been 1 ded to the h d
except otherwise indicated.

The currency of the primary economic environment of the Authority (that is, functional currency) is the Nigerian Naira.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the fi ial of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The fi dal are | d in ‘Naira', which is the group's
presentation currency.




Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority
Consolidated and separate financial statements

For the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the financial statements

(b)

©

(d)

34

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re ed. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settl of such tra jons and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of v assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are pr d in the i st within
‘finance income or costs’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement within ‘net exchange gains’.

Changes in the fair value of v securities d i 1 in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed b
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences n-_lated bunhanges in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are

recognised in other

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non v fi ial assets d at fair value, such as

equities classified as available for sale, are included in other prehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the of a hyper-inflati y y) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the p ion currency as follows:

a) assets and liabilities for each bal sheet p 1 are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

b) income and expenses for each i are { lated at t ,mm(m:]mt}m ge is not a bl
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case i and exp are lated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

c) all resulting exch diffe are gnised in other prehensive i

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Composition of the Group
The Group is made up of a number of subsidiaries. The Group re-assesses the function performed by each type of subsidiary to determine its
treatment under the IFRS 10 ption from c lidation. The types of subsidiaries and their treatment under IFRS 10 are as follows:

Wholly owned subsidiaries: The fi ial s of the subsidiaries have been lidated with the financial of the Group.
Changes in accounting policy
There were no changes in the ing policies of the Authority during the period.

New dards, dments and interpretations adopted by the Group
There were no new standards adopted by the Group for the financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

A ber of new dards and i to dards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2015,
and have not been applied in pmpan.ug tlmse lidated and separate financial None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the lidated and i of the Group, except the following set out below:

1FRS g, ‘Fi fal instr ts’, add: the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
complete version of IFRS g was :ssued in July 2014. It replaces the guidance in TAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. IFRS g retains but simplifies the mixed model and establishes three primary measurement categories for
financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through OCT and fair value through P&L. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business
model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the fi ial asset. [ in equity instruments are required to be measured at
fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in OCI not recycling.

1



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority
Consolidated and separate financial statements
For the 3 months period ended 31 March 201~

Notes to the financial statements

(b)

41
(a)

()

New dards, d and interpretations not yet adopted (cont'd)

There is now a new expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in 1AS 39. For financial liabilities
there were no changes to classification and measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive
income, for liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. IFRS g relnxes the mqtﬂrumenu for hedge effectiveness by replacing the

bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an ic relationshi: the hedged item and hedgi 1nm'mem. and for the
‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the one management actually use for mk g purposes. C i jon is still
required but is different to that currently prepared under IAS 39. The standard is effective for ing periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Group is yet to assess IFRS o's full impact. The Group intends to adopt this standard on 1
January 2018,

IFRS 15, ‘Revenuve from contracts with customers’ deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to
users of financial sutemem.s about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts

with 5. R gnised when a custs obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and
obtain the benefits from l’.he good or service. The standard replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and IAS 11 ‘Construction contracts’ and related
interp: The dard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and earlier application is permitted. The

Group is assessing the impact of IFRS 15. The Group intends to adopt this standard on 1 January 2018.

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ requires lessees in a finance lease to recognise a right to use an asset and a corresponding Hability. The standard is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and earlier application is permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of IFRS 16.The
Group intends to adopt this standard on 1 January 2019.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below were adopted by the Group in the pr ion of these fi ial st

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business binations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or Hability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and i liabilities 1in a busi combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-aequisition
bhasis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously he]d equity interest in the

acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re gnised in profit or
loss

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent ideration that is d d to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other prehensive i Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re d, and its subseq
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Inter-company transactions, bal and lised gains on ions between Group panies are elimi i, Unrealised losses are
also elimi 1. When ¥y reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Change in ownership interest subsidiaries without loss of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as
ions with the in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share

acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to rolling i are

also recorded in equity.
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Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control over any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost,

with the change in carrying suwunt recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
ing for the retained asan iate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other

oomprehenxlw income in respea of that entlty are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This

may mean that P usly recognised in other compreh i are reclassified to profit or loss.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. I in i are i for u&ns the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying is d or d d to ise the i ’s share of
the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s in in i includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the hip i in an iate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
gnised in other comprehensive i is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, md its share of post- acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive i with a corresp di to the carrying amount ddm
investment. When the Group's share of losses in an jate equals or ds its i in I:he i including any other
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objecti id that the i in the iate is i ired. If this is
the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference b the r bl of the iate and its carrying
value and ises the dj to ‘share of profit/({loss) of iates’ in the i

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's
ﬁnanml statemcnts only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
t p idence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised in
the income statement.

Interest income and interest expense

Interest i and including interest i from non-derivative financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are
reougm.sedm profit or loss usmgthe effective interest rate method. The eﬁe{tlve interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
and ipts through the expected life of the fi 1 asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the

carrymg amou.n.t of the financial asset or liability.

When caleulating the effective interest rate, the Authority estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, but not future credit losses. The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or received that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
a financial asset or liability.

Transaction costs
All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss where t ion costs are exp d in the i They include fees and

commissions paid to agents, custodians and advisers.

Net gain from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes all realised and lised fair value ch and foreig
exchange diffi but excludes int and dividend income, and dividend expense on short positions.

Fees and commissions
Fees, ission and other exp that are not integral to the effective i rate putation are recognised in profit or loss on an
accrual basis as the related services are performed.
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Fiduciary activities

The Authority provides investment management and custody services to the Debt Management Office and Nigerian Bulk Electricity Company
Ple. ("NBET") which involve the Authority making allocation, purchase and sale decisions in relation to a wide range of financial instruments

and investments. Those assets and income that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these fi ial as they are not
assets of the Authority. Some of these arrangements involve the Authority managed by the Authority. The fees and commissions which relates
mainly to these investment management transactions and other fiduciary activity fees are r ised under perating i in profit or

loss as the related services being provided are performed.

Income tax expense
The Authority and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and wholly affiliates in Nigeria shall be exempt from the provisions of any and all taxes, fees,
imports or similar fiscal laws or regulations of the Federal Government, State Government, Federal Capital Territory, Local G and

Area councils of the Federal Republic of Nigeria, including without limitation, the Companies Income Tax Act Cap. C21 LFN 2004, the Capital
Gains Tax Act Cap. C1 LFN 2004, the Stamp Duties Act Cap. S8 LFN 2004, the Value Added Tax Act Cap. Vi LFN 2004 or other imports, taxes
on interest and dividends or any similar law or regulation.

The NSIA Act exempts the Authority from the provisions of any and all taxes, fees, imports or similar fiscal laws or regulations of the Federal
Government, State Government, Federal Capital Territory, Local Government and Area councils of the Federal Republic of Nigeria. The
Authority is however mandated to pay tax on behalf of its employees and suppliers.

Dividend and i i ived by the Authority may be subject to withholding tax imposed in the country of origin. Thus the
investment income accruing to the Authority is gross of such taxes and the related withholding tax expense is recorded as such in the income
statement.

Recognition and initial measurement
All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value at the trade date, which includes transaction costs for financial instruments not

classified as fair value through profit or loss. Financial instruments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
instruments have expired or where the Authority has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Classification
The Authority has adopted the following classifications for financial assets and financial liabilities:

Financial assets:

« loans and receivables;

« held to maturity;

« available-for-sale;

« or fair value through profit or loss and within the category as:

« held for trading; or

« designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, or fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial financial instr are 1 either at fair value or ised cost, di ding on their
classification.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, other
than those classified by the Authority as fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Transaction costs that are integral to the effective rate are
capitalised to the value of the loan and amortised through interest income as part of the effective interest rate. All of the Authority’s advances
are included in the loans and receivables category.

Held-to-maturity
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed determinable payments and fixed maturities that management has
both the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, and which are not designated as fair value through profit or loss or as available for sale.
Where the Authority is to sell more than an insignificant amount of held-to- maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and
reclassified as available-for-sale assets and the difference between amortised cost and fair value will be accounted for in other comprehensive
income. Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost, using the effective i thod, less any provisions for impairment.
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Available-for-sale
Financial assets classified by the Authority as available for-sale financial assets are generally those that are not designated as another category
of financial assets, or strategic capital investments held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
hanges in rates, exch rates or equity prices. Available-for-sale ﬁmmual assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available for-sale fi 1 assets are recogni ‘dlmlymfairwlmmmmoﬂnr
comprehensive income until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired. When available-for-sale fi ial assets are di d of, the fair
value adjustments lated in other comprehensi mmme are recognised in profit or loss. Inlm income, calculated usm,g the effective
interest method, is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends r d on available-for-sale fi ial instr are recognised in profit or loss
when the Authority’s right to receive payment has been established.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception. A
financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held-for-trading unless they are designated as hedges.

Financial assets may be designated at fair value through profit or loss when:

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities on different basis; or

A group of financial assets is managed and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair values are remeasured at each reporting date.

Financial liabilities

The Authority classifies its financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset in a tr ion in which sub ially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the authority neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial
asset. Any i in ferred fi ial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the authority is recognised as a
separate asset or liability in the statement of financial position. On d ition of a fi ial asset, the difference between Ihe currymx
amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised), and the iderati ived (i 1g any

new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.
The Authority derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire,

Offsetting

Financial assets and labilities are offset and the net pr d in the of fi ial ition when, and only when, the
authority has a legal right to set off the recognised and it i it mmertosaﬂemanetbnﬂsmmmlmiﬁemudseuieﬂw
liability simultaneously.

Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition,
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the
initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that will be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction t market particip at
the measurement date.

‘When available, the authority measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length bams. If a market for a financial instrument is not actwt the authuﬂly establishes fair value using a valuation technique.
Val includ usmgmenlarmslenglh dgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the
current fair value of other instr that are sub Ily the same, di d cash fbow lyses and option pricing models.

The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little as possible on emmhu specific to the nuthmw
meorporates all factors that market participants would consider in semng a price, and is i with d economic methodologi
pricing fi jal instr Inputs to valuation technigs nm‘kaupemuomandmmmoftheﬁskmnm

inherent in the financial instrument. The authority calibrates valuation hachruques and tests them for validity using prices from observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on other available observable market data.
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The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial gnition is the tr ion price — i.e. the fair value of the

ideration given or received. H , in some cases, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different from its
transaction price. If such fair value is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument
{without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, then the
difference is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of the instrument. In other cases the difference is not recognised in profit or
loss i liately but is recognised over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or
sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

Subseq; to initial gnition, the fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations for
financial instruments traded in acuw.' mrlnats If the market for a financial asset is not active or the instrument is unlisted, the fair value is
determined by using applicabl te qu These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analyses,
pricing models and valuation techni Iy used by market participants.

Where di d cash flow anal are used, estimated cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate is a
market-related rate at the reporting date from a financial asset with similar terms and conditions. Where pricing models are used, inputs are
based on observable market indicators at the reporting date and profits or losses are only recognised to the extent that they relate to changes
in factors that market participants will consider in setting a price.

Identification and measurement of impairment

At each reporting date the Authority assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is (are) impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be
estimated reliably.

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective i rate. Impai t losses are ised in

profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans and receivables. Interest on impaired assets continues to be recognised
through the inding of the di When a subseq event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise fixed deposits with banks, and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of less than
three months from the acquisition date, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Authority in
the management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

Property and equipment

Initial recognition

All items of property and equipment are initially recognised at cost. Cost includes the value of consideration exchanged, or fair value in the
case of donated or subsidised assets, and those costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to
a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located
and capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of
equipment.

‘When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property and equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future
emnnn'nc benefits l-.mbodied within the part will flow to the Authority and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the

r d part is derecogn
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

16



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority
Consolidated and separate financial statements

For the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the financial statements

4.9:3

494

4.10

414

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straxght-lme basis over the estimated useful lives uf each part of an item of property and
equipment since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of e ption of the future benefits embodied in the asset. Leased

assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. Depreciation begins when an asset is available for use and
ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is derecognised or classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as follows:

Assets Annual depreciation rate
Leasehold improvements over the shorter of the useful life of item or lease period
Leasehold land Over the lease period
Buildings 40 years

Computer equipment 3-3 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

Office equipment 4 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Derecognition
An|temufpmper|ya.udeqummtuderemgmsedondlsposalorwhenmﬂmne ic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on de T of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of

the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets - software

Software acquired by the Authnnw is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Software is recognized
if it is probable that the exp benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and the cost of the software
can be measured reliably. Expenditure that forms part of the cost of software that meets the recognition criteria are capitalized as part of the
software. Software is accounted for using the cost model. After initial recognition, the software is carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it i the future e icbenefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of 3 years, from the date that it is available for use. The amortisation method and useful life of software are reassessed at
each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Inventoy
Inventories axewluedatmelomafmstandne{reahmbleva]ue.memstohnvenmnes mdudmnpendimummrm!h:aoqulnagﬂte
inventories, production or conversion costs. In the case of factured i y and work in prog cost i an appropriate share of

production overheads based on normal activity level.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling

Leased assets - lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
P ts made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as finance leases.
Upon initial renognln.on the leased asset is musumd at an amount equai to the lower of its fair value urld the present value of the minimum
lease p to initial ion, the asset is 1 forin dance with the g policy applicable to that asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Authority’s non-financial assets other than investment property and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-

ing unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows, which are largely independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group
of units) on a pro rata basis.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (cont'd)

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax dimum rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses gnised in prior periods are d at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss hasdmasedornolongerm&nlmpnrmemlwwnvusedmh'mmmmm
assel’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreci don, if no

impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Authority has a present legal or constructive cbligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pm-tnx rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the di is rec dasfi cost.

Restructuring
A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Authority has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring
either has commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating costs are not provided.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as noncurrent
liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Contingencies

Contingent assets

Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
oecurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

A i asset is disclosed when an inflow of econamic benefit is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is nota i and its recognition is appropriate.

Conti assets are d continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the fi ial stat t

Conti abiliti

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised b it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodyi ic benefit is A provision for the
part of the obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is pmbabie is recognised, except in the extremely rare
drcums:aum where no rellable estlmate can be made. Contingent liahilities are assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of
ec benefit hasl

Employee benefits

Post employment benefits
Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when they are due.

Pension Scheme

‘The Authority operates a funded defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for its employees under the provisions of the Pension Reform
Act 2014. The employee and the employer contributions are 8% and 10% respectively each of the qualifying employee’s salary.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans is recognised as an employee benefit exp in profit or loss in the period when
the employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that is due more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
service are discounted to their present value at the reporting date.
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Short term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are 1 on an undi d basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A provision is g1 d for the P d to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Authority has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Segment reporting
Opermng s-egmems are reponed in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief ing decision-maker. The chief
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performanoe of the upmiting segments, has been

:dermﬁed as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Segment results that are reported to the board of directors include items directly attributable to a segr as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets (primarily the Authority's headquarters), and head office
expenses.

Capital commitments

The term * itments’ is not defined in any of the standards but may be referred to as the intention to commit to an outflow from the Group
of resources embodving economic benefits.

Generally, a commitment arises when a decision is made to incur a liability in the form of a purchase contract (or similar documentation).
Such a contractual commitment would be accompanied by, but not limited to, actions taken to determine the amount of the eventual resource
outflow or a reliable estimate e.g. a quote, and conditions to be satisfied to establish an obligation e.g. delivery schedules.

These preconditions ensure that the information relating to i is rel and capable of reliable measurement. The Group may
enter into a contract on or before the reporting date for expenditure over subsequent accounting periods e.g. a contract for construction of
infrastructure assets, the purchase of major items of plant and equipment or significant consultancy contracts. In these events, a commitment
exists at the reporting date as the Group has contracted for expenditure but work has not ¢ d and no have been made.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Authority (issuer) to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it

incurs because a specified debtor (wholly-owned subsidiaries) fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified

terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value, which is the premium received, and then amortised over the life of the

ﬁmnua] guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial guarantee lability is measured at the higher of the present value of any
when a p t under the g has become probable, and the unamortised premium. Financial guarantees are

mcluded \\nthm other llablhtles

Determination of fair values

A number of the Authority’s ing policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial
assets and liahilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or
Tiability.

Investment in equity and debt securities

The fair value of equity and debt securities is determined by reference to their quoted closing bid price at the reporting date. The fair value of
held-to-maturity investments (which are the Federal Government of Nigeria Treasury bills) is determined for disclosure purposes only and are
determined by reference to the quoted closing bid price at the reporting date.

Investment in private equity funds

‘The fair value of the investments held in one of the Group’s subsidiaries are recognised at fair value determined using the net asset valuation
method. This is done by obtaining

i. the valuation of the Investee Fund's underlying investments;

ii. the value date of the net asset value (NAV) provided;

iii. cash flows (calls/distributions) since the latest value date; and

iv. the basis of ting and, in i where the basis of accounting is other than fair value, fair valuation information provided by the
Investee Fund’s General Partner. If necessary, adjustments to the NAV are made to the various Investee Funds to obtain the best estimate of
fair value.

Receivables
The fair value of short term receivables is measured at its carrying Where the
value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of return at the reporting date.

are material; it is at estimated at the present
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Impai of fi ial assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

At each end of the reporting date, the Authority assesses whether there is o}:ieu:iw evidence that a fi 1 asset or portfolio of fi ial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or portfolio of fi | assets is impaired and ;mpamnmhmsm: incurred on.lylfthem is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or portfolio of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Some objective evidence that a financial asset or portfolio of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Authority on the following events:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor; are expected to be useful for more than one period;

« A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in payments;

» It becomes probable that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

» The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial; or

+ Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow from a portfolio/group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot vet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio/group.

‘The Authority first hether object idh of impairment exists individually for financial useis thut are individually significant. If
the Authority determines that no objew\ne evidence of impairment exists for an individuall 1 asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a portfolio of financial assets with similar credit risk char istics and collectively them for impairment.
Financial assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or to be gnised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is ohjective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on loans and receivables the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amonnt and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
been incurred) di i at the fi 1 asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying nmunntufthem:amdumdthmnahthg
use of an all and the of the loss is ised in the i Asap cpedient, the Authority may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an ohservable market price.

Ifin a sub period, the of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as improved credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance The of the list ised in the i
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Critical ing esti: and jud
The preparation of fi jal in conformity with IFRS requi to make jud| i and P that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, incomes and expenses.
The esth and tated ptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be ble under the ci the results of which form
thebnsisofmkm&mjudymﬂsuhmwrﬁmvalmafmmdii&biﬁlﬁsﬂmamnnlmdilyappuent&mo&rmmdﬁnﬂmﬂumdﬁ:hmmmm

i derlyi i annnun-smngbesis. isions to ing esti ammmgnludinwepedodhwhkhﬂwuﬁmhmw,mdlnmyﬁmm
pcmdsa.ﬂ‘ﬂ:md Mamgmmdismmsuﬁlh!he&ardof“‘ the di P lection and discl of the Autk ’s eritical ig policies and estimates, and the application
of these policies and esti These di pE the c ry on financial risk 2 (see note 6).
Critical T S woultis e Anthoritss ing polici
Critical ing judg; made in applying the Authority’s accounting policies include:
Valuation of financial instruments

The Authority’s accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed under Note 4. The Authority measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the nature
and process used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (ie., as prices) or indirectly (Le., derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted
market prices in active markets for similar instr quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where
all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data. This category includes all i where the valuati h dudes inputs not based on
cbsmhledauandtheumhsemhlummuldhaveas’gmﬁmleﬁmonﬂiemarummtsvnlmﬁismindudﬂhmmmmmammbwmqndnﬁwmfm
similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

The Authority’s accounting palicies provide scope for assets and liabilities to be designated on inception into different accounting categories in certain circumstances: Details of the Authority's
classification of financial assets and liabilities are given in Note 4.7.

Depreciation and carrying value of property and equipment
The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on management's judgment. Any material adjustment to the estimated vseful lives of items of property and equipment will have an impact
on the carrying value of these items.

Determination of impairment of property md'md;mmrmﬂ intangible assets

1 is required to make jud; theuuse,limlngandamoumoﬂmpni:mm.lnthﬂdewﬁmmof’ i indi iders the impact of

chxngesmcmn:mmpaﬂhemhmmofuﬁul au.ﬁahill!y funding, memmﬂmmmwm
i exists. The Authority applies the impairment toits cash ing units. This requi tnmhen.u:iﬁml and g

lhe i of impai indi T mhgenmmn;units,mmlmmuseﬁdlmnfm prajected cash flows and net reali s jud; is also required

when ing whether a previousl gnised impairment loss should be reversed.

Impairment of available-for-sale equity

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and to d ine when an available-for-sale equity is impaired. This i

requires significant judgment. In making this jud; the Group eval among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the

financial health of and short-term business outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flow.
There has been no impairment loss recognised in these financial statements.

Fair value of investment classified as available-for-sale

The fair values of quoted available-for-sale investments are determined by reference to prices quoted in an active market. For available for sale equity investments which are unquoted, the
Authority carries these investments at cost due to unavailability of inputs to determine their fair values.

Fair value of private equity invesiments
The{auvﬂuesuftlmpnmmﬂymvemnmhddbyonedtheGrﬂupsxube&durmshuhemd:kmmdnt&emwhmdﬂemthenﬂnmﬂvﬂnﬂmunthudﬂmhﬁuuﬁn
account the net asset values as obtained from the different private equity investee funds’ most recent available financial i and distributions between the
last net asset valuation date and the reporting period. These private equity i are unquoted and ! wmiﬂumummmwalhﬂeuuwnwﬂofthuemrﬂm
period. Determining the fair values based on this valuation approach that the i wﬂlb!ru!lsednﬂmrepamum#ﬂlmmlm The sensitivity of the fair values to
changes in the jons made is disclosed in Note 6.

=



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Consolidated and separate fn

For the 3 months period ended 3

1al stalements
March zo17

Notes to the financial statements

6

L5 |

Financial risk
The(}mupsncﬁvﬁesmhmawﬁetyofﬁ.unﬂa} risks: market risk (including currency risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

PP h to risk
With a global outlook, the Group's strategy for ing risks is to und d risk within the invested universe and the externalities that can affect this, with the aim of monitoring,
controlling and mitigating against undesired events.

The Group has adopted, wi ded best practi m!hemlmﬁrauon.wuluatinnaudmﬂeﬁuthmmﬁdofﬂahlomm.u{arspmﬁbk.ﬁmnheymdhmm
or reduced to a level thansameplxhle to the Authority. The Group’s Risk Framework seeks to explain the Autt to risk the roles and
responsibilities of the Board of Directors, Risk Management department and other key parties. It also outlines key aspev:ts of the rtsk management process, , and identifies the main reporting
procedures,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Group, resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. It arises principally from debt securities held, trade receivables and advances, and also from cash and cash equivalents.

Management of credit risk

The Authority’s policy over credit risk is to minimise its exposure to counterparties with perceived higher risk of default by du]tu;only with mnerprlm meeting credit standards, hence
the Authority only deals with eounterparties that meet set credit ratings. The Authority does not manage credit risk exg on either g | basis,

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets rep the maxi eredit exp per credit rating.

As at 31 March 2017, all financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these financial assets are disclosed in the table below:

Group Group O P
(i) Money market placement 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N 'ooo N‘ooo N 'oo0
C parties with 1 credit ratings GBR, S&P, Fitch & Moody
A1(GER) 13,813,613 3,046,408 13,813,613 3046408
Ax+ (GBR) 3,073.963 - 3,073:963
At- (GBR) 18,806,127 . 18,806,127
AA (3&F) 24,330,278 58,182,824 24,330,278 58,182,824
B+ (S&P) - - % =
B (S&P) - 8,840,312 - 8,840,312
B2" - (Moody) - 20,114,662 = 20,114,662
Total money ket pl 50,0293' 90,184,206 m%ﬂ’- 90,184,206
(ii) Cash at bank
Counter parties with external credit ratings (S&P)
A-(S&P) 3 53,616,958 - 49,219,621
A-2 (SEP) 70,119,059 - 70,119,059 -
B (S&P) 10,908,627 1,672,639 2,420,505 1,670,782
A1+ (GER) 590 - 590 =
A1- (GBR) T 77500 - e *
B2 (Moody) 8 B53 8 853
BBB+ (S&F) 2425 2,793,136 2425 1276
Total cash at bank balances 88,808,209 58,083,586 72,542,677 50,892,532
G‘m ‘M 1) 1 At _lL-
31 March 31 December March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo
Counter parties without
external credit ratings
Trade receivables 2,740,899 1,624,486 1,710,531 1,724,388
Intercompany receivables * > 25,549,882 5,055,646
Advances 4.356 3.546 4,356 =
25000 1628.032 22264069 _____6.780,034
The credit quality of trade receivables and advances which are neither past due nor impaired is i by refe to historical information about counterparty default rates. The

counterparties have historically not defaulted on past obligations and there is no expectation of default as at the end of the reporting period.
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(iv) Investment securities
All investment securities are subject to credit risk except the private equity investments.
Group Group Authority thority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
Counter parties with external credit ratings 2017 2016 2017 2016
N ‘000 N ‘ooo N '000 N 'ooo
Held to Maturity
AA+ (S&P) = 4,329,608 = 4,329,608
B+ (Fitch) 9,409,284 3,379,285 9,400,284 3,379,285
B2 (Moody) = 5770479 ¥ 5770479
B (S&F) 5,212,644 = 4,226,874
B- (S&F) 3,764,668 3,657,732 3,764,668 3.657.732
18,386,596 17,137,104 17,400,826 17,137,104
Loans and Receivables
B (Fitch) 4,387,572 = 4,387,572 =
A- (Angusto & Co) 6,200,010 6,181,604 6,209,010 6,181,604
A+ (SKP) 7703112 = 7,703,113 =
BBE+ (S&P) + 7,651,603 2 7/651,603
BAA1 (Moody) 12,388 624 12,280,654 12,388 624 12,280,654
Bz (Moody) 3 13,724,619 = 13,724,619
B (S&P) 20,228,556 60,855,005 29,228,556 60,855,005
A-(GBR) 26,631,882 = 26,631,882 2
86,548,756 100,693,485 86,548,757 100,693,485
Available for sale
AA+ (S&P) 24,802,408 24,660,440 24,802,408 24,660,440
BB+ S&P 2,207,013 2,197,267 2,207,009 2,197,267
27,009,421 26,857,707 27,009,417 26,857,707
Counterparties without external credit ratings
Private equity funds, Jong only equity and hedge funds 99,222,403 92,264,145 81,927,099 76,574,230
126,231 824 119,121,852 108,936,516 103,431,937
Financial assets at FVTPL
B (S&F) 12,171,169 12,870,247 12,171,169 12,870,247
Total investment securities
6.3 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, or that
such obligations will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous to the Group.

6.3.1 Management of iquidity risk
The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities, as and when due, without incurring undue losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The

Group manages its liquidity risk by maintaining cash levels to fund short term operating expenses.

The table below shows the Groun's current cash levels:
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo
Cash in hand 197 14 197 114
Bank balances 88,808,209 58,083,586 72,542,677 50,892,532
Placements with financial institutions 60,023,980 90,184,206 60,023,981 90,184,206
. 7T T
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6.3.2 Exposure to liquidity risk

6.4

641

6.4.2

The table below analyses the group's non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Group
31 March 2017
Between 6
POV Uptogmonths |4-6months |monthsand: |Derweeniandz l .,
year
Trade payables 3,219.940 - - - 2,219,940
Other payables a 1,478,512 - - 1478512
Payables to related parties - - 20,544,105 - 20,544,105
el 2219940 uu78giz 30544105 ER—Y 5
Group
3t December 2016
Between 6
3 b Uptos - 4-6 e e ik & Between 1 and 2 Total
year >
Trade payables 1,198,158 - 228,375 = 1,426,533
Other payables 1,556,277 - 436,019 = 1,993,196
Payables to related parties - - 20,459,530 4 20,459,530
Total liabilities 2,754,435 # 21,124,824 & 23,879,259
Authority
31 March 2017
Upto3y i 4-6 b k -:_d: Betwoen s ani 2 ‘Total
In thousands of Naira vear e
Trade payables 1,347,453 - = = 1,347,453
Other payables 307,676 545,997 206,835 - 1
Total linbilities 1,655,129 545:997 206,835 = 2,307,961
Authority
31 December 2016
. Between 6
In thousands of Naira Upto3s ths |3-6 1 the and 1 Between 1and 2 Total
Trade payables 1,198,158 % 228,375 - 1,426,533
Other payables 1,784,549 - 430,151 = 2,214,700
Total liabilities 2,982,707 2 658,526 = 3,641,233
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from unfavorable changes in the fair values of financial instruments caused by adverse moves in market variables, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates,
equity prices, commodity prices, credit spreads and implied volatilities of the market rates. Market risk losses could result in a loss of earning and/or capital to the Group. The Group is
exposed to market risk through its proprietary investments and can experience capital erosion from its own direct investments in the market.

With regards to investments in certain asset classes, the Group’s pmnunl exposure can be categorised into two: namely, traditional investments and Il'laemltwe investments. Traditional
investments include cash, listed equity and fixed income instr are the real estate assets, private equity, hedge funds, and equiti
hospitality, and are generally less liquid than traditional investments. Currently, the asset classes being referred to as alternative investments are the lul estate assets, private e\tmty.
hospitality and infrastructure projects.

The Group's Market risk Framework includes:

* Market risk - comprising equity, interest rate, interest basis and currency risks;

* Valuation risk - which derives from the valualmn methodology chosen for unlisted assets. A critical associated risk is that which relates to th valuation model. The Group has exposure to
valuation risk through its investments in real estate assets, private equity investments as well as other alternative inst and project di P

The Group manages market risk by actively controlling positions taken by i in d with the i egy for each fund. The investment strategy outlines

permissible asset classes, asset allocation limits and other p limits fing to the portfolio risk appetite and risk profile. Exceptions are escalated and investment managers are
expected to provide a plan of action that would bring portfolios within limits.

The identification, and of market risk is categorised as follows:

Trading assets/Financial assets

Trading assets are carried at fair value using publicly available market rates for traded securities. Positions are monitored regularly and performance i ta rel benchmarks.
Non-trading assets/ Non-financial assets

Key performance measures are set and a robust monftoring and reporting framework is put in place to monitor performance of the Authority’s investment in alternative and unlisted
rities

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future jal ions or recognised assets or liabilities are d lina that is not the Group's functional currency.

The Group has an i in a foreign op whusenﬁmﬁ“mspmedwromignmmncytummdskuaumﬂt}u lation of its fi jal from the
operation’s functional currency to the Group's p jon currency. Non: sssdsammupmedl«fnmﬁ;nmrisk in ! with the dards. Currency

din the rel

v
exposure arising from the net assets of the Group's foreign subsidiary is managed primarily through cash and cash equi foreign currencies.

The tables below shows the sensitivity of the Group's total comprehensive income to appreciation or depreciation of the naira in relation to other currencies.
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Concentration of foreign currency exposure
Group
31 March 2017

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities (held-to-maturity)
Investment securities (Joans & receivables)
securities (available-for-sale -
Investment securities (available-for-sale - Non mnneury)
Investment securities (FVTPL)
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities - trade payables
Total financial liabilities

Net FCY exposure
Impact on profit after tax and other components of equity at 5% appreciation
Impact on profit after tax and other components of equity at 5% depreciation

Group
31 December 2016

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities (held-to-maturity)

Investment securities (loans & mehrables)
securities

Takdaf:

for-sale -

I securities (available-for-sale - Non momury)
Investment securities (FVTPL))
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities - trade payables
Total financial liabilities

Net FCY exposure
Impact on profit after tax and other components of equity at 5% appreciation
Impact on profit after tax and other components of equity at 5% depreciation

Authority
31 March 2017

Cash and cash equ;valents

Leald-t ]

Investment semrhiﬂ: {Ioans & receiw.hles]
it ilable-for-sale - M
‘sccurtmsr ilable-for-sale - Nanmonﬂx.r)r)
Investment securities (FVTPL))
Intercompany receivables

Financial liabilities - tmie payables
Total financial liabilities

Net FCY exposure
Impact on profit after tax and other components of equity at 5% appreciation
Impact on profit after tax and other components of equity at 5% depreciation

Authority
31 December 2016

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities (held-to-maturity)

Investment securities (loans & receivables)

:nvestmmlmriuts ilable-for-sale - M: ¥)
securities (available-for-sale - Non monetary)

Investment securities (FVTPL))

Intercompany receivables

Other financial assets

Total financial

Financial liabilities - trade payables
Total financial liabilities

Net FCY exposure
Impact on profit after tax and other components of equity at 5% appreciation
Impact on profit after tax and other components of equity at 5% depreciation

Naira Euro Yen usD Total
N 'ooo N 'ooo N ‘o000 N'ooo N 'ooo
70,874,040 - - 77,958,346 148,832,386
985,770 - - 17,400,826 18,386,506
21,435,116 - = 65,113,640 86,548,756
= 2,531,555 1,844,930 97,052,931 101,429,416
12,171,169 - - - 12,171,169
2,745,255 = - -

DRaugse  Esyisss  LGaeso  swemseisi  godsissde
1.219,040 E - - 1
s : : —r

- - (9,263,761) (9,263,761)
- " ¥ 9,263,761 9,263,761
Naira Euro Yen uUsp Total
N ‘o000 N'oo0 N 'ooo N'ooo N ‘ooo
1,386,365 - - T 146881541 148,267,906
- - - 17,137,104 17,137,104
20,889,206 - - 100,693.485
H - - 24,660,440 24,660,440
- 868,830 41880 93,550,702 94,461,412
12,070,247 - - s 12,870,247
B S L. T S .Y R VLS N
s : — e — Y
- 1 - - -
3 " - 268,491,856 268,491,856
# - * {13,424,593) (13.424.593)
- - - 13,424,593 13.424,593
Naira Euro Yen USD Total
N'ooo N ‘000 N'ooo
62,157,536 - .
21,435,116 - =
- 2,531.555 1,844,930
12,171,169 -
i .

Wﬂ% 2:334,355
1347.453 :

Naira Euro Yen usp ‘Total

N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo

1,384,508 - - 139,692,344 141,076,852

- - - 17,137,104 17,137,104

20,889,206 - - 279 100,603,485

- - = 24,660,440

868,830 41,880 77.860,786 7871497

12,870,247 - > = 12,870,247

37—

347.144 - -

i : Co— —

- (13.317.760) (13.317.760)
= 13.317,760 13,317,760
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6.4.5

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of loss to net interest income (NII) arising from changes in market interest rates on rate sensitive assets and Habilities,

Neti ti itisity
Themaretwourpesa{mrimthatgiwr‘isehuimmstmtzﬁskﬂmseamwhmﬂleﬁmphddsvnﬂablerﬂehuimmmmpﬁbletowhﬂwinmmlisldnewa:hangein
market interest rates or the Group holds debts instruments measured at fair value which will be exposed to fair value interest rate risk. The Group holds debts instruments measured at fair
value which are exposed to fair value interest rate risk. The table below shows the impact of interest rate changes (inc fd ) on the Authority's fixed interest fi ial assets carried at
fair value and the effect on other comprehensive income.

&“.IP lm th 3 Ly A 1 x
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'oco N ‘ooo N ‘000 N 'ooo
Available for sale investments (US treasury notes) 24,802,408 24,660,440 24,802,408 24,660,440
24,802,408 24,660,440 24,802,408 24,660,440
(All amounts are in thousands of Naira) |[mpm on | e i
1 3 1 3
Group
31 March 2017 Other comprehensive income 1,240,120 {1,240,120)
(All amounts are in thousands of Naira) IImpact e
Group
31 December 2016 Other comprehensive income 1,233,022 (1,233,022)
(All amounts are in thousands of Naira) Ilmp@ctan sitivity to 5% m‘:kymﬂ
Authority
31 March 2017 Other comprehensive income 1,240,120 (1.240,120)
(All amounts are in thousands of Naira) Ilmpact on
Authority
31 December 2016 Other comprehensive income 1233022 (1,233.022)
Equities securities price risk
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group and classified on the lidated of financial position as available for-sale. The Group

is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in
arrnrdance with the limits set hv the Gronn.

The table below summarises the impact of increases/ decreases on the Group's other comprehensive income and equity. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity prices had
increased/decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant:

G G - =
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016

N ‘000 N 'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo
Available for sale equities 1,854,200 1,529,839 989,435 745343
(1,854,200) (1.529,839) (989,435) (745.343)

Other comprehensive income would increase/(decrease) as a result of gains/(losses) on equity securities classified as available for sale by the amounts shown above.
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7 Fair value hierarchy
‘The Group classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investment portfolio according to the following hierarchy

Level Fair value input deseription Financial instruments
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active Quoted instruments
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or Equity instruments quoted in over-the
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) counter (OTC) markets
Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) Unquoted equity instruments and debt
instriments
Unquoted equity instruments and debt instruments are mn ‘with the Inter Private Equity and Venture Capital with to the most

appropriate information available at the time of measurement.

The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Authority’s financial assets (by class) measured at fair value at 31 December 2016, All fair value measurements disclosed are
recurring fair value measurements.

Available for sale sties
Group
31 March zo17
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'ooo N'ooo N'voo N'ooo
US treasury notes £ 24,802,408 24,802,408
Avaible e ialioquities 4,017,038 2,207,009 30,859,962 37,084,009
Hedge funds and long only equity managers - 2 64345407 64345407
4,017,038 27,000.417 95205369 126231824
31 December 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo
US treasury notes - 24,660,440 = 24,660,440
Available for sale equities 4,825,019 2,276,771 23,494,988 30,596,778
Hedge funds and long only equity managers - = W 63864634
4,825,019 26,937,211 359,622 19121852
Authority
31 March 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N 'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
US treasury notes " 24,802,408 = 24,802,408
Available for sale equities 4,017,038 2,207,009 13,564,653 19,788,700
Hedge funds and long only equity managers - - 64.345.408 64345408
4,017,038 22009417 Z7.310,061 108,936,516
Authority
31 December 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
US treasury notes - 24,660,440 - 24,660,440
Available for sale equities 4,017,038 2,276,771 8,613,054 aﬁm
Hi funds and long onl uity ma TS E =
edge ng only equity manage - :
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Group
31 March 2017
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss = 12,171,169 - 12,171,169
~ 12,171,160 = 12,171,160
Group
31 December 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N'goo
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss > 12,870,247 - 12,870,247
. = ey G TR
Aunthority
31 March 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 5 TZ17L169 = 12,171,169
- L B 12,171,
Authority
31 December 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'goo N 'ooo N'ooo N'oo0
Financial asset at fair value throu; fit or loss ¥ 12,570,247 - 12,570,247
e : : TERE
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(a) Financial instruments in level 1

ﬁefai:valmafﬁmndalhmmmemmdedinacr‘mmarletsisbuedouqnutrdmrkﬂpﬁmasats:Hamhm:?.nmrkﬂhmdaduu&NHunpﬁmmmdﬂymw

available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

(b) Financial instruments in level 2

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. They include jnvestments in equity
mriﬁett}marenulradcdinanacﬁvemarhelblnfwwhichan-adingpiae.{amzxmanwhlchaprimnnbedmmhedforwhhhmrkupﬂﬁdpummﬂdmlnorda‘wpumhmthe
asset as at the reporting date i.e.at the Over-the-Counter alternative markets.

These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are ok bie, the i is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value ial i ents include quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.
(c) Financial instruments in level 3
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs that have been applied in valuing the respective asset or liability. The determination of what constitutes "observable’ requires significant judgment by
the Authority. The Authority considers observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. There were no transfers between levels during the year.
ilable-for-sale (. in hedge funds and private equity funds)
Level 3 is comprised of investments in hedge funds and private equity funds held by the Authority that are not quoted in active markets. In determining the fair value of these investments, the
Authority relies on the valuation as rep  in the latest available financial statements and/ or capital account provided by the i iger, unless the Authority is aware
of reasons that such a valuation may not be the best approximation of fair value. In such cases, the Authority reserves the right to assign a fair value to such investments which differs from the
one reported by the investment manager.
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the 3 months period ended 31 March 2017 for available for sale financial assets.
Group Group Authority hority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 z017 2016
ilable-fe le fi ial assets N 'ooo N'ooo N'o00 N 'ooo
Opening balance 87,359,622 53,144,957 71,669,707 42,914,857
Additions 4,619,821 9,976,855 2,907,553 2,700,007
Distributions received (140,644) (3.620,341) (126,439) (183,704)
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (3,420) (189.759) (3,420) (189,759)
Fair value movement 2,640,580 4,195,961 2,811,302 2,576,357
Exchange gain/(loss) 720403 23,851,948 651,268 23851049
Closing balance 95,205,369 8‘?@.‘@ n._srm.ou 71,669,707
The table below shows the sensitivity analysis of fair value ilable-for-sale financial assets:
Group Authority
31 March 31 March
2017 2017
N'ooo N 'oo0
Available-for-sale financial assets e v
Fair value movement 1 NAV adiusted 132.479.45 140,570
Decrease = ) (140,570)
Group Authority
31D 31D b
2016 2016
N N'ooo
[5% changes in fair [inputs Difference mﬁiﬁ_m
Available-for-sale financial assets value movement
Fair value movement NAV adiusted 128,818 |
Decrease (209,798) (128,818)
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£ tal assets and £

ial liabilities

The financial instruments by category for the Group and the Authority are shown in the tables below

Group
31 March 2017

In thousands of Naira

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities:
Measurement at fair value
Measurement at amortised cost

Other assets

Trade and other payables

Group
31 December 2016

In thousands of Naira

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities:
Measurement at fair value
Measurement at amortised cost

Other assets

Trade and other payables

Authority
31 March 2017

In thousands of Naira

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities:
Measurement at fair value
Measurement at amortised cost

Other assets

Trade and other payables

Authority
31 December 2016

In thousands of Naira

Cash and cash equivalents

Advances

Investment securities:
Measurement at fair value
Measurement at amortised cost

Other assets

Trade and other payables

Financial assets held at Held-to- Loansand  Available-for- Other financial  Total carrying
FVTPL | ivahl: sale liabilities amount Fair value
A 5 148,832,386 - - 148,832 386 148,832 386
12,171,169 2 - 126,231,824 - 138,402,993 138,402,993
* 18,386,596 86,548,756 - - 104,935,352 104,067,845
- " 2,749,611 5 2,749,611 2,749,611
12,171,160 18,386,596 238,130,753 126,231,824 = 394,920,342 394,052,835
2 = - - 25,242,557 25,242,557 25,242,557
Financial assets held at Held-to- Loansand  Available-for- Other financial  Total carrying
FVTPL maturity ivabl sale liabilities Fair value
= 148,267,906 £ - 148,267,906 148,267,906
12,870,247 - - 19,121,852 - 131,992,099 131,992,099
- 17,137,104 100,693,485 5 - 117,830,589 117,369,406
: < 1,628,032 - = 1,628,032 1,624,486
12,870,247 17,137,104 250,589,423 119,121,852 # 399,718,626 399,253,897
= " = s 23,879,259 23.870,259 23.879.259
z - - = 23,879,259 23,879,259
Financial assets held at Held-to- Loans and ilable-for- Other fi ial Total carrying
FVTPL ri ivabl sale liabilities amount Fair value
12,171,169 - - 108,936,516 - 121,107,685 121,107,685
- 17,400,826 86,548,757 - - 103,049,583 104,067,846
- - 27,260,125 = = 27,260,135 27,269,125
12,171,169 17,400,826 246,384,737 108,936,516 B 384,803,248 385,001,511
= % 2 X 2,407,961 2,407,061 2,407,961
: 2 : : 2,407,961 2,407,961 2,407,961
Financial assets held at Held-to- Loansand  Available-fi Other fi ial Total carrying
FVTPL ity receivabl sale liabilities Fair value
- = 141,076,852 - - 141,076,852 141,076,852
12,870,247 - - 103,431,937 - 116,302,184 116,302,184
- 17,137,104 100,693,485 - - 17,830,589 117,830,589
= = 1,727,934 = - 1,727,934 1,727,934
12,870,247 17,137,104 243,498,271 103,431,937 = 375-957,15'9 376,937,559
- - Z 3641233 3,641,233 3641233
- - - = 3,641,233 3,641,233 3,641,233
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7.1.1  Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities

Group
31 March z017
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
In thousands of Naira
Cash and cash equivalents 148,832,386 - 148,832,386 - 148,832,386
Advances 4,356 = 4356 = 4,356
Other assets 2,749,611 - 2,749,611 - 2,749,611
Held-to-maturity 18,386,506 - 18,386,506 - 18,386,506
Loans and receivables 86,548,750 = 86,548,756 # 86,548,756
Available-for- sale instruments 126,231,824 4,017,038 27,009,417 95,205,369 126,231,824
FVTPL 12,171,169 - 12,171,169 - 12,171,169
394,924,698 4,017,038 295,702,291 95,205,369 394,924,698
Other financial liabilities 25,242,557 - 25,242,557 - 25,232,557
31 December 2016
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
In thousands of Naira
Cash and cash equivalents 148,267,906 = 148,267,906 = 148,267,906
Advances 3546 - 3,546 = 3546
Other assets 1,624,486 ¥ 1,624,486 = 1,624,486
Held-to-maturity 17,137,104 = 16,675,921 = 16,675,921
Loans and receivables 100,693,485 - 100,693,485 * 100,693,485
Available-for- sale instruments 119,121,852 4,825,019 26,937,211 87,359,622 119,121,852
FVTPL 12,870,247 = 12,870,247 = 12,870,247
399,718,626 4,825,019 307,072,802 87,359,622 399,257,443
Other financial liabilities 23,879,259 = 23,879,259 - 23,879,259
Authority
3t March 2017
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
In thousands of Naira
Cash and cash equivalents 132,566,855 - 132,566,855 * 132,566,855
Advances = = B = =
Other assets 27,269,125 = 27,260,125 = 27,269,125
Held-to-maturity 17,400,826 & 17,400,826 - 17,400,826
Loans and receivables 86,548,757 - 86,548,757 . 86,548,757
Available-for- sale instruments 108,936,516 4,017,038 27,000,417 77,910,061 108,936,516
FVTPL 12,171,169 = 12,171,169 = 12,171,169
384803248 3,017,038 302,066,140 77,010,061 384893248
Other financial liabilities £ = 3,641,233 * 3,641,233
31 December 2016
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
In thousands of Naira
Cash and cash equivalents 141,076,852 = 141,076,852 = 141,076,852
Advances 3,546 - 3.546 = 3546
Other assets 1,724,388 = 1,724,388 = 1,724,388
Held-to-maturity 17,137,104 - 16,675,921 - 16,675,921
Loans and receivables 100,693,485 - 100,693,485 - 100,693.485
ilable-for- sale inst 103,431,937 4,825,019 26,937,211 71,669,707 103,431,937
FVTPL 12,870,247 > 12,870,247 2 12,870,247
376,937,559 4,825,019 299,981,650 71,669,707 376,476,376

Other financial liabilities 3641233 - 3,641,233 - 3.641,233
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8  Segment information
Management has determined the operating segments based on the information reviewed by the board of directors for the purposes of allocating and ing performance.

The Authority has three reportable segments being the Stabilisation Fund (SF), Future Generations Fund (FGF) and Nigeria Infrastructure Fund (NIF). Each of the Funds is managed
separately as they entail different investment objectives and strategies and contain investments in different products.
For each of the Funds, the management reviews the internal management repart. The objective and principal investment products of the respective reportable segments are as follows:

Stabilisation Fund (SF) To provide stabilisation support to the Federation in times of economic stress
Future Generation Fund (FGF) To invest in a diversified portfolio of appropriate growth i in order to provide future generation of Nigerians a solid savings base for such a
time as the hydrocarbon reserves in Nigeria are exhansted
Nigeria Infrastructure Fund (NIF) To invest in infrastructure projects in Nigeria that meet our targeted financial returns and contribute to the devel of ial i in
Nigeria
Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is d based on segn profit as included in the internal 1 reports.
profit is used to measure performance as the directors believe that such information is most relevant in evaluating the profitability of each segment.
Information about reportable segments
Future Nigeria
- Subillnal::u; & P e o eiadh 1 Total
Fund Fund

31 March 2017 N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Investment and interest income 290,037 1,577,860 1,732,061 a8 3,600,046
Net gain on financial assets = . (699,077) « 699,077
Net foreign exchange gains 218,344 271,368 524,078 869 (157,830)
Total operating i 508,381 1,849,228 1,557,062 958 2,343.129
Investment management fees 24,668 (347.934) - - (323,266)
Foreign custodian fees 139 (123) (38) = (21
Total i t & custodian fees 24,807 (348.057) (38) & (323,287)
Tolal operating segment profit 533.189 1,501,171 1,557,024 958 2,219,842
Other income = E 2435001 2,338 2,437,338
Total other income - - 2,435,001 2,338 2,437,338
Operating and administrative expenses > (4,289) 2 (399,806) a%
Total ing and administrative exp = ( (399,806) (2
Share of profit of investment in associate - ¥ 88,509 = 88.599
Profit before tax 533,189 1,496,882 (899,042) (397.469) 1,797,019
Taxation ‘ 4 = & =
Profit after tax 533,189 1,496,882 (899,042) 563,990 L797,019
Profit attributable to:

Owners of NSIA 533,189 1,496,786 (899,042) 665,990 1,796,923

Non-controlling interest £ 96 = - 96
31 March zo17
Reportable segment assets
Cash and cash equivalents 29,669,338 38,138,692 80,422,052 602,304 148,832,386
Investment securities 47.897.618.05 120,869,803 74,570,924 = 243,338,345
Other assets 1,034,255 5.888 14,559,654 608,080 16,207,877
Investment in subsidiaries * & & = *
Investment in associate = - 2,201,904 = 2,201,904
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Reportable segment liabilities
Trade and other payables 984,845 107,728 22,068,257 1,204,760 25265500
7T
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Stabilisation ~ , uture Nigats i e
Fund ucture

Group Fund Fund
31 March 2016 N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'oo0 N'ooo
Total operating income 708,495 1,663,261 1,991,426 521,243 4,884.424
Other income - - - - -
Total op ing i 708,495 1,663,261 1,991,426 521,243 4,883,424
1 B ¥ (8,052) (12,441) (2,681) (5.650) (28,825)
Local custodian fees (693) (386) (529) (917) (2.525)
Global eustodian fees (7.345) (9.763) (1,917) (1,950) (20,975)
Total seg; i it & custodian fees (16,090) (22,591) (5,128) (8,517) (52,325)
Total operating segment profit 692,405 1640670 1986298 2726 4.832.000
Other operating expenses (100,649) (32515) (139.866) (50.840) (s23870)
Share of profit of investment in associate = = 23,847 ¥ 23.847
Tolal segment operating &

St Gty aties (100,649) (132,516) (139,866) (50,839) (423,870)
Segmented profit for the period 591,756 1,508,154 1,846,432 461,888 4.432,076
Group
31 December 2016
Reportable segment assets
Cash and cash equivalents 29,083.640 45,257,167 72,345,716 1,581,383 148,267,906
Investment securities 48,922 305 107,799,608 93,100,775 = 249,822,688
Other assets 1,084,781 2,557,746 468,451 587,066 4,698,044
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - -
Investment in associate = = 1,957,853 = 1,957.853
Property and equipment - - 16,120,760 66,304 16,187,064
Intangible assets =
Reportable segment liabilities
Trade and other payables 1079389 93844 20575245 2,341,084 24,089,561

1,079,389 93.844 T A T F
8(a) Entity-wide information
The breakdown of investment and interest income from external customers are as follows:
Group Group
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
N 'ooo N'ooo
Attributable to the Authority's country
of domicile 2,514,915 2,501,874
Attributable to foreign countries 1,085,131 (1,097,709}
Total investment income 3,600,046 1,404,165
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g  Investment and interest income
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo
Interest income on bills 665,455 452,736 652,414 452,736
Interest income on fixed deposits 1,409,156 563,359 1,409,156 563,359
i on eurobond: 440,164 264,827 440,164 264,827
Investment income on equities and securities 1,085,131 116,817 764,590 16,817
Interest i on bank bal 140 6,426 140 6.426
3,600,046 1,304,165 3,266,464 1,404,165
== T = ==
10 Net gain on financial assets
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N 'o00 N '‘ooo N 'ooo
Net (loss)/gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit (699,077) 4,097,828 (699,077) 4,097,828
orloss
Net realised loss on available for
B b * (540,907) = (647,240)
£699,077) 5000 (699:077) 3,450,588
Unrealised gains/loss on financial assets at FVTPL represents the gains made on swap transactions carried out with the Central Bank of Nigeria in 2016. The
corresponding asset is shown in Note 16
11 Net foreign exchange loss
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo
Net foreign exchange loss (357.840) (76,662) (357.840) (76,662)
(357,840) 76.662) (357,840) 76.662)
Net foreign exchange loss represent exchange loss on the monetary assets of the Authority during the period as a result of fluctuations in exchange rate.
12 Other income
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo
Other income 2,437,338 = 2,338 *
2,437,338 = 2,338 s

Nz.qishillion of the Group's other income balance represents revenue from NAIC-NPK Limited's (member of the Group) sale of fertilizer during the period.
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13.1

16

Operating and admini tive exp
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo
Personnel expenses 131 331,465 279,879 320,484 279.879
Depreciation 13.679 20546 12,811 20,122
Amortisation 138 2,036 138 2,036
Non audit fees - quarterly review 4,500 3.500 4,500 3,500
Other professional fees 243,556 36,4907 181,044 36,408
Non ive directors exg 18 230 18 31
General and administrative expenses 135,423 47.561 21,375 40,532
Office rent and other expenses 37,095 19,169 28,869 19,169
Travel expenses 23,431 14,542 17,067 14,542
Cost of sales (fertilizers) 2,159,456 = - -
2,948,761 423,870 596,206 416,418
Personnel expenses
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N '‘ooo N 'ooo N 'oo0
Salaries 314,151 263,971 312,070 263,971
Defined contribution plan 17,314 15,908 17,314 15,908
331,465 279,879 329,484 279,879
Taxation
‘This represents the tax deducted at source on investment income due to the Group. These are taxes deducted on income made by the subsidiary incoroporated
outside Nigeria. The rates of these taxes vary and depends on the jurisdiction the income was made. The s paid the final tax liability on the

income. Income accruing to the authority and wholly owned subsidiaries is exempt from all forms of taxes in line with the Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority
Act.

‘There has been no tax paid by the foreign subsidary as at period under review.

Cash and cash equivalents
Group Group Authority Authority
g1 March 31 December g1 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N 'oo0 N 'oo0 N 'ooo
Cash 197 114 197 114
Bank balances 88,808,209 58,083,586 72,542,677 50,892,532
Money market placements 60,023,980 90,184,206 60,023,981 90,184,206
148,832,386 148,267,906 132,566,855 141,076,852
Investment securities
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'oo0 N 'o00 N 'oo0 N 'ooo
Held to maturity investments 16.1 18,386,506 17,137,104 17,400,826 17,137,104
Loans and receivables 16.2 86,548,756 100,693,485 86,548,757 100,693,485
Available for sale investments 16.3 126,231,824 119,121,852 108,936,516 103,431,937
mmﬁg - 16.4 12,171,169 12,870,247 12,171,169 12,870,247
243,338,345 249,822,688 225,057,268 234,132,773
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16.1 Held to maturity investment securities

Group Group Authority Authority
91 March 31 December g1 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N 'oco N 'ooo N 'ooo
Eurobonds 17,400,826 17,137,104 17,400,826 17,137,104
Nigerian treasury bills 985,770 % =) 3
18,386,596 17,137,104, 17,400,826 17,137,104
Maturity analysis:
Current 985,770 - - -
Non-current 17,400,826 17,137,104 17,400,826 17,137,104
18,386,596 17,137,104 17,400,826 17,137,104
16.2 Loans and receivables
Group Group Authority Authority
31March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N ‘ooo N 'ooo N ‘ooo
Fixed deposits 86,548,756 100,693,485 86,548,757 1485
756 100,693,485 86,548,757 100,
Maturity analysis:
Current 86,548,756 100-59_3;-435 86,548,757 100,693,485
86,548,756 100,693,485 86,548,757 100,603,485
16.3 Available for sale i it
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N 'ooo N '‘ooo N 'ooo
US treasury notes 24,802,408 24,660,440 24,802,408 24,660,440
Available for sale equities 37,084,009 30,596,778 19,788,701 14,906,863
Hedge funds and long only equity managers 64,345,407 63,864,634 64,345.408 63,864,634
126 11 1
Maturity analysis:
Non-current 126,231,824 119,121,852 108,036,517 103,431,937
126,231,824 119,121,852 108,936,517 103,431,937
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N ‘o00 N 'ooo N ‘ooo
R iliation of available for sale fi ial assets
Opening balance 110,121,852 113,479,673 103,431,937 103,249,573
Additions/(disposals)
US treasury bills 200,731 14,707,785 200,731 14,707,785
Available for sale equities 4,787,916 7,103,099 2,709,114 1,786,562
Available for sale securities - (29,759.689) - (29,759.68g)
Hedge fund and long only equity managers (689,600) (18,339) (689,600) (18,339)
Fair value gains /(losses)
Movement in fair value reserves 2,810,925 13,600,323 2,866,250 13,466,045
Closing balance 126,231,8 119,12
16.4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December g1 March 31 December
z017 2016 2017 2016
N '000 N 'o00 N 'oo0 N 'ooo
Swap instruments 12,171,169 12,870,247 12,171,169 12,870,247
12,171,169 12,870,247 12,171,169 12,870,247
Maturity analysis:
Current 12,171,169 12,870,247 12,171,169 12,870,247
e 12,171,169 12,870,247 12,171,169 12,870,247

16.5 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The balance shows the fair value of the financial assets arising from the currency swap transactions with the Central Bank of Nigeria during 2016 financial period.
The notional amount of $100million represems the balance as at the end of the current period, which is the amount of the underlying assets and is the basis upon
which the changes in the value were d. The ding notional indicate the volume of transactions as at the period end and are indicative of

neither the market risk nor the credit risk.
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17 Other assels

Financial assets:
Trade receivables
Intercompany receivables
Advances to staff

Non-financial assets:

Prepayment
Inventory 17a

Maturity analysis:
Current

17a Inventory

Raw materials
Finished goods

Inventories have not been pledged as security for liabilities.

18 Investments in subsidiaries

At the beginning of the period
Additions during the period
Return of capital

At the end of the period
Maturity analysis:

Current

The group had the following subsidiaries at 31 March zo17

Name of entity

NSIA Motorways Investment Corporation (NMIC)
KG Brussels LP

KG Acquisition [ LLC

FGF Private Equity Co. Ltd

FGF Investments Ltd

Nigeria Agriculture Investment Company

FGF PE Beta Ltd

NSIA Property Investment Company Limited

NSIA Health Devel and C Limited

NSIA Power Investment Company Limited

Infrastructure Credit Guarantee Company Limited

Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
2,740,899 1,624,486 1,710,531 1,724,388
= = 25,549,882 5,055,646
4.356 3546 4:356 3546
3.8u,723 3,070,012 599,197 sT2n3
9,650,899 = - -
16,207,877 4,698,044 27,863,966 7,355,693
16,207,877 4,698,044 27,863,966 7,355,603
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo
9373414 - - =
277,485 = = -
31 March 31 December
2017 2016
N 'o00 N 'ooo
7,096,155 7,066,155
o 30,000
7-095&5_5 7;096,151
7»“95-“'_:.5 7,096,'5&
Place of Nature of the %of hi thori Authority
busi f lationship i 31 March 31 December
Country of
inenrmaration 2017 2016
N'ooo N'ooo
Investment
Nigeria holding 100 1,000 1,000
United States ot Investment
America holding 99.97 7,063,155 7,063,155
United States of Investment
America holding 100 - =
Investment
Nigeria holding 100 1,000 1,000
Investment
Nigeria holding 100 1,000 1,000
Investment
Nigeria holding 100 1,000 1,000
Investment
Nigeria holding 100 1,000 1,000
Investment
Nigeria ding 100 1,000 1,000
investment
Nigeria holding 100 1,000 1,000
Investment
Nigeria holding 100 1,000 1,000
Investment
Nigeria holding 100 25,000 25,000
7,096,155 ?.uoﬁ.xs_i_

a6
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18

KG Brussels LP isa Pmnem‘:;)(:h.::;:\)lds a portfolio of investments in other private equity investee funds. The General Partner of the Partnership is KG Acquisition I LLC, which is
owned by NSIA. NSIA is a limited partner in KG Brussels LP.

FGF Private Equity Co. Ltd is a wholly-owned subsidiary domiciled in Nigeria. The subsidiary was set-up to invest in private equities.

FGF Investments Ltd is a wholly-owned subsidiary domiciled in Nigeria, The subsidiary was set-up to invest in private equities and other investments.

NAIC-NPK is a wholly owned subsidiary of NAIC, domiciled in Nigeria. This subsidiary was set-up to invest in fertilizer,

FGF PE Beta Ltd is a wholly-owned subsidiary domiciled in Nigeria. The subsidiary was set-up to invest in private equities.

NSLA Property Investment Company Limited: wholly-owned subsidiary in investing in and to purchase, acquire, hold, develop, work and turn to account any land (of any tenure), landed
property or real estate of any kind.

NSIA Healthcare Development and Investment Company Limited: wholly-owned subsidiary domiciled in Nigeria. The subsidiary was established to invest in any company, corporation,

authority or body involved in or any ar related to healthcare infrastructure or healthcare service delivery and/or management.
NSIA Power 1 Limited: wholly d subsidiary domicil ed in Nigeria. The subsidiary was set-up to invest in the development of infrastructure related to power
including but not limited to gns bi ission lines, and other and distribution infrastructure and equipment.
19 Investments in associate
Group Group hority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N'ooo N ‘'ooo N'ooco
At the beginning of the period 1,057,853 2,129,600 1,600,000 1,600,000
Share of profit/(loss) of associate 88,509 289,755 - =
Share of fair value reserves of associate 245,451 (461,502) * =
At the end of the period 2,291,904 1.957.853 1,600,000 1,600,000
The amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are as follows:
Associates S .
At 31 March 2017 —OSL
Associates = =—==N
At31 March 2016 —t

Set out below is the associate of the Group as at 31 March 2017, The associate as listed below has share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group;
the country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business. The nature of investment in associate :

+ £y ey Yl
Niimsok o Place of % of P method

| Nigeria Mortgage Refinance Company (NMRC) Nigeria 20,91 Equity

NMRC is a government business entity and there is no quoted market price available for its shares.
ﬂmmmmﬂngemﬁ:hd:mxdmlotheGmups interest in the associate.

Set out below are the . | inft ion for NMRC which is accounted for using the equity method.

31 March 31 December

2017 2016

Summarised balance sheet N'ooo N'ooo
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 1,327,008 1,250,120
Placement with banks 15,760,541 1,443,069
Mortgage refinance loan 8,207,952 8,104,246
AFS investment securities 16,403,417 29,391,930
Other assets 356,064 307,545
Property and equipment 366,627 246,567
Intanyibis dpselh 33,850 36136

w
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Note 19 cont'd
Linbilities
Accounts payables 125421 339177
Company income tax 16,474 13,006
Term loan 24,506,259 24,268,660
Housing market development fund 213,451
NMRC fixed rate bonds 7:497.372 7,542,865
Total liabilities 32,358,977 32,163,708
Capital and reserves
Share capital 7837857 6,944,290
Retained earnings 1,647,326 1,343.320
Statutory reserves 657,982 527,694
Available for sale reserves (46,673) (190.399)
Total equity 10,096,492 8,624,905
‘Total liabilities and equity 40,788,613
Summarised of compreh
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
N'ooo N'ooo
Interest income 1516025 393.553
Interest expense (567.481) (174,142)
Other Income 3.500
Depreciation and amortisation (27,109) (6,130)
Personnel expenses (235.934) (55.230)
Operating expenses (270,104) (52.997)
Income tax expense 4,822
Profit for the period 423,718 105,054
Other comprehensive income 84,106 -
Total comprehensive income 507,824 105,054
The information above reflects the P d in the financial s of the iate (and not NSLA's share of those amounts) adjusted for differences in accounting policies
between the Group and the associate.
Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Reconciliation of the ised fi jal information p d to the carrying amount of its interest in associate.
Group Group
31 March 31 December
2017 2016
N'ooo N'ooo
ised fin ial infor i
Net asset of associate 10,096,492 8,624,005
Group share of of net asset (20.91%) 22 1,957,853
Carrying value of associate 2,291,904 1957853
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20 Property and equipment
Group

Cost

As at 1 January 2016
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 December 2016

As at 1 January 2017
Additions
As at 31 March 2017

As at 1 January ;i)lﬁ

Charge for the period (1 Jan 2016 - 31 March 2016)
Charge for the period (1 April 2016 - 31 December 2016)
Disposals

As at 31 December 2016

As at 1 January 2017
Charge for the period
As at 31 March 2017

Net book values
As at 31 March 2017
As at 31 December 2016

Authority

Cost

As at 1 January 2016
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 December 2016

As at 1 January 2017
Additions
As at 31 March 2017

As at 1 January ;016

Charge for the period (1.Jan 2016 - 31 March 2016)
Charge for the period (1 April 2016 - 31 December 2016)
Disposals

As at 31 December 2016

As at 1 January 2017
Charge for the period

As at 31 March 2017
Net book values

As at 31 March 2017

As at 31 December 2016

Maotor Computer Office  Furniture and Assets under
hicl Juiy quip fitting; construction Total
N 'ooo N 'ooo N '‘ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N 'oo0
128,631 94,400 1,071 76,028 7,591,021 7.891,151
10,000 21,241 704 953 83531,9Mm 8,564,160
(18,000) = . = - (18,000)
120,631 115,641 1775 76,981 16,122,292 16,437,320
120,631 115,641 1,775 76,981 16,122,292 16,437,320
- 40,952 20,229 38,916 = 100,097
120,631 156,593 22,004 115,897 16,122,202 16,537,417
76,017 74.345 628 39,301 - 160,201
8,751 8,005 89 370 - 20,546
29,915 12,215 300 1,579 = 54,009
(14,770) - - - = (14,770)
99,913 94,655 Lo17 54.671 = 250,516
99,913 94,655 Loty 54671 = 250,256
7.480 2,317 85 3,797 - 13,679
107,393 96,972 1,102 58,468 = 263,935
13,238 59,621 20,502 57429 16,122,292 16,273,482
20,718 20,986 758 22,310 16,122,292 16,187,064
Motor Computer Furniture and Assets under
hicl quip quip fittings construction Total
N 'ovo N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N ‘ooo
121,739 94,400 1071 76,028 - 293.238
10,000 21,241 704 953 & 32,898
(18,000) - = = = (18,000)
113,739 115,641 L775 76,981 = 308,136
13,739 115,641 1,775 76,981 - 308,136
13,739 115,641 1,775 76,981 - 308,136
74,361 74,345 628 39.301 - 188,635
B,146 8,005 89 3792 - 20,122
23,752 12,215 300 11,578 47,845
(14,770} - - - - (14,770}
91,489 94,655 17 54671 * 241,832
91,489 94,655 1,017 54,671 - 241,832
6,611 2,317 B6 3,797 - 12,811
98,100 96,972 1103 58,468 = 254,643
15,639 18,669 672 18513 = 53,493
22,250 20,086 758 22310 . 66,304
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20 Property and equipment (cont'd)
Maturity analysis:

Non current

21 Imtangible assets

Group & Authority - 31 March 2017
Cost

Balance at 1.January 2017
Additions

Balance at 31 March 2017
Amortisation

Balance at 1 January 2017
Charge for the period
Balance at 31 March 2017
Net book values
Balance at 31 March 2017

Group & Authority - 31 December 2016

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2016

Additions

Balance at 31 December 2016

Amortisation

Balance at 1 January 2016

Charge for the period (1 January 2016 - 31 March 2016}
Charge for the period (1 April 2016 - 31 December 2016)
Balance at 31 December 2016

Net book values

Balance at 31 December 2016

The Group’s intangible assets are purchased and not internally generated

Maturity analysis:

Non current

22 Trade and other payables

Financial Liability:

Trade payables

Other payables

Payables to Federal Government in respect of the Second Niger Bridge (Note 25)
Non financial Liability:

Accruals

Maturity analysis:
Current

23 Equity and reserves

Contribution by Government
Retained earnings

Fair value reserve

Currency transiation reserve
Non-controlling interests

231
232
233
34
B35

Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N 'oo0
16,273,482 16,187,064 53493 66,304
lﬁ-ﬂlﬁﬂ* 16,187,064 53,493 66,304
Software Total
N'ooo N'ooo
24,503 24,503
24,503 24,503
23,882 23.882
138 198
24,020 24,020
483 483
N'ooo N'ooo
24,503 24,503
24,503 24,503
18,764 18,764
2,036 2,036
3,082 3.082
23,882 23,882
621 621
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo
483 621 483 621
483 621 483 621
G G St Bority
31 March 31 December 31March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo
3,219,940 1,426,533 1.347.453 1,426,533
1478512 1,993,196 1,060,508 2,214,700
20,544,105 20,459,530 - -
23,033 210,302 21,753 77:255
25,265,500 24,089,561 2429.715 3,718,488
25,265,591 24,089,561 2429715 3,718,488
25,265,591 24,089,561 2,429,715 3,718,488
Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'oo0 N 'ooo N'ooo N 'o00
204,375,000 204,375,000 204,375,000 204,375,000
149,642,270 147,845,348 148,504,963 147,172,616
39,611,639 36,661,142 38,928,544 36,062,204
8,045,290 7.958,502 - =
4,687 4.623 - -
401,678,886 396.844615 301808507 387,600,910
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23.1 Contribution to G

Opening balance
Additions during the period
Closing balance

Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo
204,375,000 155,250,000 204,375,000 155,250,000
> 49,125,000 3 49,125,000

The sum of US $250million was approved at the National Economic Council meeting on February 2017 as additional capital contribution by the three tiers of government to the

Authority. This contribution is yet to be received by the Authority.

23.2 Retained earnings

Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N'ooo N '000 N'ooo
Opening balance 147,845.348 17,466,251 147172,616 17,738 425
Profit for the period 1,796,922 130,379,097 1,332,347 129,434,191
Closing balance 149,642,270 147,845,348 148,504,063 147,172,616
23.3 Fair value reserve
‘The fair value reserve includes the net comulative change in the fair value of available-for-sale i until the § isd gnised or impaired. The P i
within other comprehensive income are the gross amounts as the Authority is exempted from income taxes.
Gron G g s herity
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N'ooo N ‘ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Ttems that may subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss
Opening balance 36,661,142 23,513,074 36,062,294 22,596,249
Change in value of available- for- sale financial assets 2,705,045 25,060,047 2,866,250 25,825,522
Net amount transferred to profit or loss 5 (12,359.477) * (12,359.477)
Share of change in value of available- for- sale financial assets - ( iate) 245451 (461,502) E 3
Closing balance 39,611,639 36,661,142 Méﬁ 36,002,204
23.4 Currency translation reserve
The currency translation reserve includes the net lative change in the foreign gains or losses arising from lation of the financial of the foreign subsidiary, KG
Brussels LP, into the Group's presentation currency. The s p i within other comprehensive income are the gross as the O is i from income taxes.
Group Group
31 March 31 December
2017 2016
N 'ooo N 'oo0
Opening balance 7,958,502 1,653,739
Net changes in foreign currency 86,788 6,304,763
Closing balance 8,045,290 7,958,502

23.5 Non-controlling interest (NCI)

income attrik

“This reserve shows the amount of profit or loss and other ¢ }
Brussels L.P.

Opening balance

(Loss)/profit attributable to NCI
Fair value reserve

Currency translation differences

Closing balances

ble to the non-controlling interest of the group. NCI arises as a result of an interest in K.G.

41

Group Group
31 March 31 December
2017 2016

N 'ooo N "'o00
4,623 3213

96 196

(51) (247)

18 1,461
4,687 4,623
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25

25.1

Capital management
Theﬁu&lmtywtomamuunaslmugcapm]ba.semmdertoretmuﬂ:ecmﬁdmmuflheNmnpwpleandthemarlnelwithahldtumslamfum
for the busi 18 itors the return on capital by reviewing monthly performance returns from investment managers.

The management of the Authority seeks to maintain a bal b the higher return that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the

advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
TheAuthumymunmcapm:xI u.nnga mim of adjusted net debt to adjusted equity. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising
to parties and other ob ions, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

P

The Authority’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2017 was as follows:

Group Group Authority Authority
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo N 'ooo N'ovo N'ooo
Total liabilities 25,265,590 24,089,561 2,429,715 3,718,488
Less: cash and cash equivalents 148,832,386 148,267,906 132,566,855 141,076,852
Net surplus (123,566,796) (124,178,345) (130,137,140) (137,358,364)
Total equity 401,674,199 396,839,992 391,808,507 387,609,910
Adjusted equity 401,674,199 396,839,992 391,808,507 387,600,910
Net surplus to adjusted equity ratio -31% -31% -33% -35%

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
or operational decisions. NSIA is the ultimate parent of the Group.

As disclosed in note 18, NMIC, KG Brussels LP, FGF Private Equities Co. Lid, FGF Investments Ltd, FGF PE Beta Ltd, and NAIC are subsidiaries of the
Authority and are therefore related parties. NMRC is an associate of the Authority and is also a related party. The Second Niger Bridge Company Ltd is a related
party to NMIC and as a consequence, the Authority. NAIC-NPK is a subsidiary of NAIC and is also a related party.

The following are the transactions with related parties during the period:

Payables to related parties:
Group Group Authority Authority
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'ooo0 N 'ooo N'ooo N 'oo0
Payable to the Federal Government in respect of the Second Niger Bridge 20,544,105 20,459,530 - -
20, 10, 20,459,530 - -
Rep t i ived from the Federal Government of Nigeria to finance the early works phase in respect of the Second Niger Bridge project.
C ion of key g t 1
T‘heAuLhontyskzy management personne], and persons connected with them, are also considered to be related parties for disclosure purposes. The definition
of key includes close bers of family of key personnel and any entity over which key management exercise control. The key management
personnel have been identified as the executive management of the Authority. The executive management of the Authority did not hold any shares in the
Authority during or as at the end of the period. The p ion paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:
Directors't tion and exp
31 March 31 "March
2017 2016
N 'o00 N 'oo0
Short-term employee benefits 271,641 -
Fees as directors - -
Defined contribution plan 10,174 -
271,641 =
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25.2 Transactions with subsidiaries

The underlisted subsidiaries have the following payables due to the Authority as at the reporting date:
31 March zo17
‘Type of interests finans Ryatnt

N'ooo
NSIA Motorways Investments Company Limited Subsidiary 531,108
KG Brussels L.P, Subsidiary 35,326
NSIA Property Investment Company Limited Subsidiary 400
NSIA Power Investment Company Limited Subsidiary 400
NSIA Healtheare Development and Investment Company Limited Subsidiary 200
FGF Private Equity Co. Ltd Subsidiary 250
FGF P.E. Beta Lid Subsidiary 200
Infrastructure Credit Guarantee Company Limited Subsidiary 68,968
NAIC-NPK Limited Sub-subsidiary 7,777,500
FGF Investment Limited Subsidiary 500

26 Other contracts
The investment activities of the three separate funds established by the Authority were managed by various investment managers engaged during the period.

26.1 Stabilisation fund
The Authority engaged the following investment managers through their global custodian JP Morgan for the management of the Stabilisation Fund. The list of
investment managers at as at period end are as follows:
26.1.1 UBS Global Asset Management (UK) LTD
Engagement and Service
The Authority engaged UBS Global Asset Management Ltd as its agent and delegate to ige the i and rein of certain monies and assets,
deposited from time to time by the Authority and held by JP Morgan.

Reports on Investiments
UBS Global Asset Management Company provides the Authority with reports containing the transactions, valuations and portfolio performance of the account
on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis.
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26.2

26,3

26.4

26.5

Future Generations Fund
26.2.1 Hedge fund
The hedge fund managers in which the Future Generations Fund is invested as at period end are stated below:
1. JHL Capital Group LLP
2. Blue Mountain Capital Management
3. Arbiter Offshore Ltd
4. AQR Capital Management

26.2.2 Commodity managers
The commodity manager in which the Future Generations Fund is invested as at period end is:
1. Jamison Capital Partners

26.2.3 Long Only Equity Managers

The long only equity managers in which the Future Generations Fund is invested as at period end are stated below:
1. Cevian Capital UK LLP

2. Edghaston Investment Partners

3.5 Capital Manag LLP
4. Marathon Asset Management LLP
5. Capital Group

6. Prince Street Institutional Ltd

7. Prince Street Opportunities Ltd
8. Chieftain Capital

26.2.4 Private equity pariners
The private equity fund in which the Future Generations Fund is invested as at year end are stated below:
1. Z Capital Partners

2. Healtheare Royalty Partners

3. Xenon Private Equity

4. Helios Investment Partners

5. Africa Capital Allianee

£ Antie Maniia)

7. Abraaj Grov;lh Markets Health Fund L.P

Nigeria Infrastructure Fund

27.3.1 Private equity partners

The private equity fund in which the Infrastructure Fund invested as at period end are stated below:
1. Fund for Agricultural Finance in Nigeria (FAFIN)

Nigerian equities

A portion of the Infrastructure Fund was invested in the following Nigerian equities:

1. MTN Nigeria Communieations Limited
2. Nigeria Mortgage Refinance Company

Custodians
JP M
Custodi e
i Stanbic IBTC
Engagement and Service

The Authority engaged these firms to provide custody services, as well as accounting, performance and compliance services to capital managed by the Authority.

Reports on Investments
The custodians provide reports to the Authority on the performance of the capital custodied by said firms on a monthly basis.
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27 Commitments

28

(a) Capital commitments
The Group's unfunded commitments with private equity fund managers are as follows:
Capital commitments - US$:

Authority Authority
31 March 31 December
2017 2016
§ 'ooo § 'ooo
HealthCare Royalty Partners (HCRP) 14,398 14,308
Z Capital Partners 6,048 6,813
Fund for Agricultural Finance in Nigeria (FAFIN) 2,604 3459
Helios Investors 3,083 5,165
Synergy Private Equity Fund LP 463 743
Actis Africa Real Estate Fund 8,428 8,705
Capital Alliance Private Equity Fund 5352 5352
Falko Regional Aircraft Opportunities Fund 9,013 9,013
Verod Capital 5,000 5,000
RMB Westport Real Estate Development Fund 11 5,000 4,975
Abraaj Growth Markets Health Fund L.P 3.567 5
Total 63,946 63,622
Capital commitments - Euro:
Authority Authority
31 March 31 December
2017 2016
Euro 'oo0 Euro 'o00
Xenon Private Equity 2,888 2,888

As disclosed above, the Authority has committed to provide eapital to various collective investment vehicles. The total of these commitments at the statement of
financial position date is US$63.2 million and Euro 2.888 million (2016: US$63.9 million and Euro 2.8 million). The Authority’s commitment obligations,
being capital calls, are set out in the various underlying subscription documents. Whilst the actual timing of the capital calls to be made by the managers of
these vehicles is uncertain, as it is dependent on the igers sourcing suitable investment opportunities, the Authority has recorded the commitments as
being current in accordance with the underlying legal documents. The Authority has appropriate liquidity planning in place to ensure a suitable allocation of
resources will be available to cover these future commitments of capital.

(b) Operating Lease Commitments - Group Company as Lessee:

’l‘heGmupleasesiLsheadoiﬁce under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 1 and 5 years, and the majority of lease
are e at the end of the lease period at market rate. These lease payments are payments made in advance and thus no minimum lease

pa\.mentsmmqmmdtobeshmm

Other fiduciary activities

The sums of USD$200 million and USD$350 million ("the Funds™) were received from the Debt Management Office ("DMO") and Nigerian Bulk Electricity
Company Ple. ("NBET") respectively under an Investment M ("the Agr (™). NSIA acts as a manager of the Funds. The agreement
pwvtdesfwtheﬁmhomyiomventthethdsmgas,pﬂwerundotherrelated i Consid ation is payable to the Authority after certain milestones have

been met and the customers' share of return has been paid. AtuwlofUSDsloomﬂ]immwﬂhdmwn&mthgDMOMdinotdertoﬁm&thsSmudN‘lger
Bride Project on the authority of the Federal Government. The fair value of the Managed Punds as at 31 March 2017 stood at USD367.44 million and
USD133.51 million for NBET and DMO respectively (2016:$490.71 million) while nil income (2016:N529million) has been acerued by the Authority from the
fiduciary agreement activities as of 31 March 2017,

A total sum of N10,17 billion have been received from the Federal Government Stabilization Account via the Office of the Accountant General of the Federation
("OAGF"). NSIA is to act as a manager to the fund with a mandate to invest the funds in line with the investment policies of the Stabilization Fund of the
Authority. The fair value of the Fund as at 31 March 2017 was N11.42 billion.

The assets and liabilities of the Funds have been excluded from these financial statements as they are not assets and liabilities of the Authority.



